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In August 2017 Rowans Hospice received an
‘Outstanding’ inspection report from the Care
Quality Commission. The inspection covered the
entire range of our clinical services. In October
2017 we were subject to assessment by CHKS, an
independent quality assurance programme. As a
result we received ongoing accreditation recognising
Rowans Hospice as a provider of high quality care
across our clinical and non-clinical services.
Since Rowans Living Well Centre (RLWC) opened
18 months ago over 1,200 people previously not
known to our services have received our care.
Among the many service developments since the
RLWC opened has been a new service for our local
veterans and their families.
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In October 2017 Rowans Hospice was approached by
West Hampshire Commissioners to explore increasing
provision of end of life care to people at home under
an NHS contract. Commissioners wished to ensure
that this care be delivered by specialist teams such as
Rowans Hospice at Home (H@H), with an emphasis
on helping people in hospital who wish to return
home for end of life care, with care being delivered
over months rather than weeks . At this time we
recognised that, consistent with other care agencies,
Rowans Care Agency (RCA) was finding it difficult to
grow and make a financial contribution. We decided
that we should redirect our energy from RCA towards
extending our charitable activities through H@H.
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The RCA team is being offered the opportunity to
transfer their employment into the Rowans Hospice
Charity and join H@H to support the delivery of
the new NHS contract and care to our existing RCA
clients.
During this year Rowans Hospice has responded to
the new General Data Protection Regulation which
came into force in May 2018. We trust that we
have previously met the ethos of these requirements
and fully support their implementation. We hope
that the majority of our supporters will opt-in to
receiving our communications so that we continue
to receive their valuable support.
Funding our services continues to be a challenge. In
response to this our Trading Company has increased
income to Rowans Hospice. Our shops promote our
services to our community, and provide employment
and development opportunities for our staff and
volunteers. There are exciting plans in place to
further develop the Trading Company and our many
imaginative community fundraising activities which
are so well supported.
I am delighted to welcome Marcus Patrick as a Patron
of Rowans Hospice. Marcus is a Hampshire born
actor and a committed supporter of Rowans Hospice.
We will celebrate our 25th anniversary in October
2019. We will use the event as an opportunity to
fundraise for an extension and refurbishment of
our in-patient unit to ensure that Rowans Hospice
is fit for the future and able to meet the developing
needs of our community.
Elizabeth Emms

3

Chief
Executive’s
Statement
The development of services to reach out to more
people who are living with life-limiting and serious
illnesses has prompted trustees to review our
‘Charitable Objects’ which, since 1994 have stated:
‘The relief of sickness, suffering and distress of
persons suffering from a terminal illness’
The review and recommendation has been
considered by Members of Rowans Hospice Charity
and will come into place during the next financial
year to support further developments as addressed
in The Honorary Chairman’s Statement. The new
Charitable Objects will expand upon ‘terminal illness’
to demonstrate the desire to expand our services to
those who are chronically sick and to those who are
frail. The new Charitable Objects will state:
“The relief of sickness, suffering and distress of
persons with a terminal illness, progressive chronic
illness and increasing or irreversible frailty”
This amendment has received endorsement from
the Charity Commission and will be confirmed as
such with the Charity Commission and Companies
House. The amendment supports the work we
have been undertaking to support people to live
well through Rowans Living Well Centre, caring
for anyone who requires additional support to die
peacefully at home and to deliver care to those who
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were previously supported by Rowans Care Agency.
The criteria however to access Specialist In-Patient
Care, Day Care Services and some other more
specialist services will remain unchanged.
Demonstrable developments this last year have
included a collaborative project with South Downs
College and funded by Kenwood Foundation
to ‘teach’ basic cookery skills to carers and the
bereaved, as well as other nutritional workshops
to support health and well-being. Furthermore,
yoga classes are now being offered to complement
chair based activities facilitated by our specialist
physiotherapist who is leading clinical staff to foster
a rehabilitative approach in our care delivery to
maximise independence. Courses on ‘how to care’
are also being developed, recognising that many
people cared for at home rely on their own family
members and friends to provide care. Although
many have experience, not everyone does and some
basic training in care is being welcomed with the
bonus of camaraderie from being with other people
in similar situations.
As a Charity providing health and social care and
to ensure we utilise charitable donations wisely we
consider very carefully any new service and indeed
any existing service to ensure that we complement
and supplement what is provided by the state.
Working collaboratively to enhance services and
working in partnership with others to ensure, as
far as this is possible, that people receive the best
possible care at home, within the hospice, within
Rowans Living Well Centre and even in hospital.
This last year we have integrated NHS and Rowans
Clinical Psychology and Bereavement Services based
at Rowans Hospice to ensure that every person
requiring support is fully assessed and allocated the
most suitably skilled person, ranging from a Clinical
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Psychologist, to Psychotherapist, Counsellors and
specialised and trained Family Service Volunteers.
Hospice at Home works similarly, working alongside
community nurses and domiciliary care agencies
and within the hospital advice and support is given
to junior doctors during the evening and weekends
to support less specialised doctors to make the
most appropriate decisions. Specific work has also
been undertaken to support more people to get
back home or indeed to the hospice when hospital
treatment is no longer deemed necessary, as
evidenced within this Annual Report.
Although the emphasis within the new Charitable
Objects is around the patient we must, as
demonstrated above, work closely with family and
friends too, which is contained within our broader
governing documents.
Whilst requesting Members to support this Special
Resolution we also took the opportunity to remove
‘The’ from Rowans Hospice to be consistent with
the refreshed brand and newly developed brand
guidelines.
These Governing documents, like our Hospice
brand, will also be having a refresh to ensure they
are compliant with current Charitable and Company
Legislation and will be discussed further with
Members at the next Annual General Meeting where
this report will be presented.
Thank you for your interest in how we have utilised
charitable funds to enhance the quality of life for
all people who have benefitted from Hospice care
and for your support in maintaining and further
developing these vital services into the future.
Ruth White
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Our year in numbers

435

(people supported)
referrals to
Hospice at Home

1543

Attendances at Day Care

Average length of stay for an in-patient

Patients admitted
to the Hospice
In-patient care

4259

Attendances at the
Living Well Centre
6

119

Discharges
from hospice
In-patient
care

161

232

Referrals to Psychology

125

Adults (receiving) 1 to 1
Bereavement Support

Referrals to the
Social Work Team
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visits by
our Hospice
Companions

Portsmouth - 221 /
South-East Hampshire - 314

Total = 535

12 days
399

referrals to our
Physiotherapy Team

303

referrals to
Occupational Therapy

71

New patients
referred to the
Dementia Team

78

Children and young people
referred to the Meerkat Service
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It’s all about our people
Our People Strategy is to ensure that the right people are in the right place at the right
time with the right skills and knowledge. We spend in the region of £20,000 per annum to
ensure our staff and volunteers are absolutely up to date, trained and developed with the
appropriate skills and knowledge to fulfil our ultimate aim, to deliver high quality care.
All across the Charity, our staff work alongside our
volunteers and together they form the backbone
of the Charity. We have been fortunate in
this past year to be able to welcome new team
members to our workforce in order to support the
significant service developments. Our Learning
and Development Strategy ensures that we remain
committed to the principle that effective and current
education is paramount, so as to ensure those
affected by a life-limiting illness receive high quality
care. We regularly provide training, workshops and
educational sessions, some of which are regulatory
and statutory and others for the purpose of
continuing professional development for our clinical
workforce and for external clinicians alike.

We are fortunate to attract so many wonderful
volunteers who support the Rowans Hospice
Charity across its entire operation. The 1300 or
so volunteers choose their own areas in which to
volunteer and this ranges from our In-patient Ward,
our Living Well Centre, across our Retail Shops and
in our beautiful gardens at the Hospice, plus many
more besides.
We know that volunteering is important to our
Society and one of our volunteers – Maureen Tett
– was nominated for, and successfully received, the
League of Mercy Medal Award.

We have also embraced the new Apprenticeship
Scheme; in the picture below you will see Joe
Balloqui, who is working with us as an Apprentice
within our Finance
Department and is due
to spend 18 months with
us whilst attending South
Downs College one day per
week. Joe is on track to gain
the Assistant Accountant L3
AAT qualification in 2019.

Our Six Steps to Success Programme has continued
with great impact in this last year with nine care
homes successfully completing the training and
due to its success, we hope to continue with the
Programme and to deliver to a further twelve care
homes in this next year.
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The League of Mercy was founded on
30th of March 1899 by Royal Charter
of Queen Victoria. It was instigated by the Prince
of Wales who became its first Grand President.
Subsequently two further Princes of Wales (George
V and Edward VIII) succeeded him in this office;
finally HRH Prince Henry, Duke of Gloucester took
over. The object of the League was to establish a
large body of voluntary workers who would assist
with the maintenance of voluntary hospitals and
‘otherwise relieve sickness and suffering’. When the
1948 National Health Act abolished these hospitals,
the League was quietly wound up after performing
its task extraordinarily well for nearly half a century.
However today the award still celebrates the
significant contribution from volunteers.
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

Our volunteers freely gave 11,600 volunteer hours in the year and we would not be able
to operate the Charity without this gift of time, we are truly grateful to them all. Some of
their stories are shared below:

James values
becoming more
independent
As a regular customer of
our Bishops Waltham shop
James was asked by the
shop manager if he was
interested in becoming a
volunteer. James thought about it and decided
it would be a good stepping stone for him to
learn how a shop operates and to build on
skills that could support him with employment
opportunities in the future.
James has now been a volunteer with Rowans
Retail for over five years and is loving every
part of it! He transferred to our Fareham shop
18 months ago and always looks forward to
helping us every Friday afternoon. When asked
recently what he enjoyed the most about being
a volunteer he said: “I like being part of the
team and I enjoy working with everyone. I love
doing the media, processing the donations
of DVDs and CDs and pricing them ready
to be sold.” James also enjoys meeting and
greeting the customers and helping them with
their donations, especially when he is able to
promote gift aid and sign new people up.
Asked how he has benefitted from volunteering
he responded: “It has helped me with learning
about how to work in a shop environment and
meeting new people. It also helped me become
more independent. I don’t know where I would
be today if it wasn’t for the support of our
Manager Sharon and Rowans Hospice!”
James has been a great support to the Fareham
shop and it has been rewarding to see him
grow from strength to strength. We were
overjoyed when he recently announced he was
successful in obtaining a part-time job in the
IT department at Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Service.
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

Norma Parker
My husband died 5 years ago, he was looked after
by the Hospice at Home during March 2013. The
care we received was fantastic, first class service.
Not only during the day, but they also organised
night help so that I could get some sleep. I felt the
need to give something
back to Rowans so in
the November of that
year I signed up to
volunteer in the Lee
on the Solent shop. I
love volunteering in
the shop, the staff are
brilliant, it’s woken
me up and given me
a renewed sense of
purpose in life.

Caroline Harmsworth
I have worked in the National Health Service
all my working life as a registered nurse. Since
retirement I decided to volunteer some time
and chose the Rowans Hospice, as I believe in
the cause. I did three placements originally with
Rowans to decide what suited me best. The first
at the Hospice doing meal delivery, the second
was clerical support
and the third in a shop.
I decided on the shop
role as it is completely
different to my working
life and I am enjoying the
change and social aspect
whilst still supporting
the cause.
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Trustees’ Report
Strategic Report
Objective of The Rowans Hospice
The Rowans Hospice aims to offer the relief of sickness, suffering and distress of anyone suffering from a
life-limiting illness, in particular through the provision of medical and nursing care and facilities.
The Hospice has developed a range of services to best meet the local needs of people suffering from lifelimiting illnesses. These services can broadly be grouped under six headings.

In-Patient
Care

Therapeutic
Day Care
Services
Bereavement
Support

Hospice
at Home

Community
Care

Education
and Training

In-Patient Care
On the In-patient Unit our primary concern
is to relieve pain and distress caused by
complex conditions. By providing a full range
of clinical services we help many patients
regain their independence and return home.
This year, as last year, 30% of our patients
returned home after receiving care from us.
The in-patient unit is staffed by a clinical team with
highly specialised expertise in managing the physical,
emotional, social and spiritual effects of a serious life
limiting illness. Daily a team of 22 specialised nurses
and doctors, alongside other clinicians, provide round
the clock care for up to 19 patients. This year the inpatient unit supported 399 admissions for care.
The hospice team understands the importance of
treating each patient as an individual. During the
admission process, the doctors and nurses establish
what is important to that patient; this might not
always be primarily focused on medical needs.
For example we have held celebrations, organised
weddings and arranged surprises for patients;
even organising transport to facilitate a mother to
be part of her daughter’s wedding celebrations.
Singing happy birthday on the morning of a patient’s
birthday is a natural part of a nurse’s day!

Achievements

Each of these services is able to use resources provided by the multi-disciplinary team, offering a full range
of health and social care expertise across hospice and community settings

Public Benefit
The Trustees review the strategy and approve the two year business plan developed by the executive team
annually. In undertaking this review the Trustees have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.
10
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Following a CQC inspection in Sept 2016 Rowans
Hospice received in August 2017 the most exciting
news - an ‘Outstanding’ inspection report from the
Care Quality Commission (CQC). The overall rating
resulted from being awarded ‘outstanding’ reviews
for both ‘care’ and ‘responsiveness’. We are delighted
to have received this recognition. The inspection
covered the entire range of clinical services provided
by the Hospice: including volunteers, housekeeping
and catering as well as clinicians.
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CQC stated
‘People received outstanding
care from exceptional staff
who were compassionate,
understanding, enabling and
who had distinctive skills in supporting people
living with a life-limiting illness. Staff were highly
motivated and inspired to offer care that was kind
and compassionate and were determined and
creative in overcoming any obstacles to achieving
this. People valued their relationships with the
staff team and felt that they often went ‘the extra
mile’ for them, when providing care and support.
As a result, they felt really cared for and that they
matter. The Hospice was outstandingly responsive
to the needs of the people in their community and
services offered by the Hospice were shaped to
meet these needs. The organisation’s vision and
values emphasised respect for each other, put
people at the heart of the service, and focused
upon enhancing the lives and wellbeing of people
who used the services.’
In addition to being inspected by CQC, we
were subject to rigorous assessment by CHKS,
an independent quality assurance programme.
Following a review in October 2017, we were
proud and pleased to announce our ongoing
CHKS accreditation. This achievement means that
Rowans Hospice is recognised as a provider of high
quality care, with recognition and commendations
to non clinical teams also.
Work is actively being carried out in partnership
with Portsmouth Hospitals to support the patient
to be in the right place at the right time; this is being
achieved by considering the appropriate transfer of
patients to the hospice in-patient unit for ongoing
specialist management including care in dying.
This concept is also being supported by referral to
Hospice at Home to support discharge from hospital
for those people whose preference is to die at home.
During this year 175 patients have been admitted
appropriately to the hospice from the hospital – an
increase of 13% on last year.
11

Objectives
The Hospice aims to continue working on systems
to improve management of referrals and enquiries;
support appropriate timely admissions and consider
how patients are transferred and discharged.
The hospice has begun to introduce the Integrated
Palliative Care Outcomes Scale (IPOS); this is a
validated brief assessment tool which has been
welcomed by patients and professionals as a
measure which, without being onerous, is able
to capture people’s most important concerns - in
relation to symptoms, information needs, practical
concerns, anxiety or low mood, family anxieties
and an overall feeling of being at peace. Repeated
completion over time drives care planning for
the individual and demonstrates outcomes for
patients and carers leading to an improved patient
experience. The whole multi-professional team will
be involved and digital infrastructure will support
this change.
Our society on average is getting older and it will
continue to do so. It is forecast that by 2040 there
will be twice as many people over the age of 75
than currently. Our community needs will change
and the Hospice is adapting to meet those needs.
During 2016/17 four patients’ rooms were adapted
to accommodate the particular needs of those living
with dementia and other cognitive impairment. The
decision made by the trustees to commit money to
a major renovation of the in-patient unit – has led to
a further decision to future proof the hospice for the
next 25 years not just the in-patient unit; ensuring
the service can continue to meet the needs of our
patients and carers.
Engaging with patients and carers, who use or have
experienced any of the services we provide, is a
priority for us as an organisation. We would like to
understand more about what patients and families
value, what they might want more or less of and
how they think we might shape and develop our
services to meet their needs rather than ours. This
insight is also a step towards understanding how we
can engage more fully with our entire community.
We would like to involve “users” – current, past
and potential, in consultations – on policy and on
facilities (in the next year this includes plans for
refurbishment).

Verity James
In 2012 our happy family life was shattered with
the news that mum, Alison, had an aggressive brain
tumour. She underwent treatment including surgery
and radiotherapy but was too poorly to continue on
to have chemotherapy. She battled on bravely but,
in July 2013, she had deteriorated even further and
was admitted to hospital. Here we were told that she
would only have weeks to live.
We were faced with the decision of what to do
next - try and take her home to receive end of life
care, or look for a hospice place. We were fortunate
enough to be offered a bed at Rowans Hospice and
gratefully accepted this.

Mum stayed in the Hospice for nearly 7 weeks and
received outstanding care during this time - as did
the rest of us. We were a broken, devastated group of
individuals when we arrived on that first day. But from
the minute mum crossed the threshold of the Hospice,
she was lovingly and tenderly cared for by the amazing
staff. They looked after her every need and made the
last few weeks of her life as relaxed and pain free as
possible. They gave our family an amazing gift – the
chance to be mother, husband, daughter, grandchild to
her as we no longer had to be her carers.

As soon as we walked through the door, I knew
we had made the right decision. Matt and I had
been planning our wedding for the end of August
but on the advice of the doctors, had arranged for
the service to take place on the Monday following
receiving the devastating news. This was also the
day that mum was due to be admitted to Rowans
Hospice. Although mum was too ill to attend, the

During the many hours that I spent with mum
at the Hospice, I was convinced that this was an
organisation that I wanted to be a part of. One day
I stumbled upon a job opportunity at the Hospice
– a role within the communications team – and I
knew that I had to apply so I could contribute to this
wonderful place. I was successful at interview and
began working for Rowans Hospice in July 2015.

Tom Parham

This time I had the chemo treatment in tablet form, I
did 3 cycles and each scan showed a reduction in the
tumour, but after the 4th cycle the tumour had grown
and so the chemo had failed this time. The consultant
delivered the news that he felt I only had about 12
months to live. I can only say that was shocking to
hear.

My cancer journey started
in 1995 with my first tumour
which was behind my nose. The
treatment was an aggressive
course of radio and chemotherapy
which was successful and did
remove the tumour. Due to this
experience I decided to study nursing at Cardiff
University. It was during my studies in 2013
that I started to experience pains in my head,
investigations showed a second tumor at the base
of my skull in my brain. So I started the intense
radiotherapy treatment followed by chemotherapy.
Again this successfully removed the tumour
which was a huge relief, but left me in quite a
poor physical condition. During this period I had
returned home as being in student digs was not
appropriate and I needed the support of my family
to regain my health.
In early 2017 I started to experience a horrible pain
in my coccyx which affected how I sat and was
excruciating. I attended A&E and they did the scans
which showed that I had a tumour in my spine. This
news felt like a physical blow, my heart sank and I
felt very frightened, this was my third tumour and
I knew how tough the treatment was going to be.
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family and our wonderful minister Anna met at the
Hospice for a blessing service after - allowing mum
to be part of our special day. The staff had decorated
the room with flowers and provided drinks for a toast.
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My physical and mental condition did take a turn
for the worst, I had little to no appetite and was in
constant pain. My district nurse introduced me to
the idea of having some respite care at the Rowans
hospice I was admitted on Friday 27 April - it was
quite late in the afternoon and pouring with rain.
Coming in to Reception, the nurse quite literally
wrapped me in towels to get me dry and it felt
like they wrapped their love around me. I knew
immediately that I was in the right place for now.
The next morning I saw the consultant and she took
her time to find out exactly what and how I was
feeling. She created a care plan that would manage
my pain and, hopefully, help with some of the other
symptoms. I stayed for 17 days and the sense of
these caring arms being wrapped around me was
reassuring and settling. I was very aware of the time
being given to treat me as a person and look after my
whole wellbeing.

Since then, I have volunteered at lots of events,
raised over £1000 by walking, running, cycling
and abseiling for the Hospice, which has been
great fun and feels really rewarding.
More recently I have been promoted to manage
our capital appeal project where we will be raising
funds to completely renovate our hospice. I am
so please to be involved with future proofing
our hospice so that we will be able to continue
to offer the outstanding care for those in our
community who need it just like my family have.

the doctors, nurses and volunteers were extremely
friendly, caring and, actually, loving. They could not
do enough for me, and for my mum and family as
well. They put their heart into everything they do
which is so obvious and so supportive when you
yourself are in quite a dark and frightened place.
The gardens at the Hospice are really wonderful
- many days my mum and I could sit outside and
enjoy the tranquil feeling they promote, this helped
enormously with my stress levels. The quality of the
food they serve at the hospice is excellent and the
chef would deliver what I felt I could eat.
With the changes to my medication I have seen
a slight improvement with my pain but with that I
am managing to sleep much better, which allows
me more energy the next day, sleep is so important
and really helps with your mood.
Today I feel more mobile, my pain is being managed
and is more bearable for now, I feel more positive
and thankful for the support and love that has
been shown to both me and my family, especially
my mum, who tells me every day that is it lovely to
see her son again.
I have no fear of returning to the Rowans when I
need too.

Every person who I came in to contact with, from
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018
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Hospice at Home giving choice
where it matters

Hospice at home case study
Joan and Keith had been referred to us by the
hospital palliative care team for a rapid discharge as
Joan was imminently dying and her last wish was
for her to be at home. We encountered a situation
in which Joan was at a high risk of dying in the
ambulance on the journey home but Joan and her
family were adamant they wanted the discharge to
take place.

We know that most people in their final days of life
would choose to die peacefully and with dignity and many
would like to die in their own home, among those who
are important to them. However, the fear of uncontrolled
symptoms often results in people going to hospital to die.
Rowans Hospice at Home service aims to offer
additional support at this crucial time in people’s
lives to enable them to stay at home or in their usual
place of residence (eg care home). Providing quality
nursing care for people who are at the end of life,
aiming to avoid a hospital admission and support
people so that they are able to leave hospital or the
hospice and return home for the final days of their
life, should this be their preference.
The Hospice at Home team offer a range of services
from planned supportive visits to enable those living
alone to be supported if dying at home, support
during a ‘crisis’ to enable patients to stay at home;
preventing admission, access to advice from the
specialist palliative care team for symptom control
and the management of distress to include spiritual
and psychological support.
Some people referred to Hospice at Home do not
end up needing regular visits or planned care as
simply having a safety net with access to specialised
nurses when needed, gives them the confidence to
remain at home.

Achievements
The Hospice at Home team supported 435 people
this year.

Objectives
This much-valued service has been offered the
opportunity to provide part-funded Continuing Health
Care for people in Hampshire who wish to die at home.
Hospice at Home work alongside Community Nurses
and GPs as well as care agencies to support end of
life care already being provided in the community. The
Hospice at Home team have worked alongside Rowans
Care Agency providing nursing as well as personal
care and this joint working has been excellent, aiding
smooth communications and handover. The Hospice at
Home service is currently completely funded through
the charity.
14

During the assessment Joan was so fatigued that
she struggled to stay awake but her determination
was evident and she was able to say “I just want to
go home and be in my bed”.

At times, working in this way we have enabled
discharge home for someone who is nearing end of
life, where Continuing Health Care funding has been
agreed, but a package of care is not available at the
time of discharge. However, an opportunity has arisen
that will allow the team to deliver funded packages
of care to patients in the last 12 weeks; supporting
those who wish to die at home. This is an excellent
opportunity to offer a service that meets the needs of
people living in Hampshire, delivered by a highly skilled,
dedicated Hospice at Home team.

Rowans Care Agency

During November 2016 Rowans Hospice announced the
opening of a new subsidiary company to provide adult
social care to the residents of Fareham and Gosport.
Since that time Rowans Care Agency has delivered
personal care to a number of clients and has provided
many end of life and complex care packages for the NHS.
The Rowans Care Agency staff and Hospice at Home
team have been able to work alongside each other in a
significant way and during the past few months there
have been a number of discussions about their services
with NHS commissioners.
In October 2017, Rowans Hospice and other specialist
providers were approached by Clinical Commissioners
for East Hampshire and Fareham and Gosport to explore
an increase in the provision of end of life care to people
at home under a new NHS contract.
Commissioners were clear that they wanted to ensure
those people who are approaching the last few months
of life were cared for by specialised teams, recognising
the quality and support that is offered by teams like
Rowans Hospice at Home. There would also be an
emphasis on helping people who are residing in hospital
to return home for end of life care, supporting their
choice and preference.
The original concept for Rowans Care Agency was to
provide high quality adult social care and develop a
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

Although we are a small team we have the benefit
of focusing on End of Life Care and making
sure everything is in place in preparation for the
discharge such as medications, essential equipment,
planned visits to support with practical care
contact numbers so we can respond throughout
the 24hours, emotional and psychological care for
the patient and just as important for the family
members.
Hospice at Home arranged to meet and greet Joan
on discharge from the hospital to home. We arrived
as the ambulance did and were able to settle Joan
at home and give reassurance to the family. It was
also important to listen to their frustrations, sadness
of living with a condition that she was now dying
from, Joan’s fears of dying and the family’s. They

new and reliable income stream to support Rowans
Hospice Charity. Whilst successfully building a
reliable and committed team of carers, Rowans Care
Agency, consistent with other care agencies in a highly
competitive market, has been hampered by the inability
to recruit high quality care staff from the local area. As
a result the Agency has found it extremely difficult to
achieve sustainable growth to where it can be relied upon
to make a consistent and positive financial contribution to
Rowans Hospice Charity.
Therefore, at this time, when Rowans Care Agency is
finding it difficult to grow and with the opportunity to
increase and expand care provided by Rowans Hospice
at Home, it has been agreed by Trustees and Directors
that our focus and energy should be given to extending
charitable activities through Hospice at Home.
Rowans Care Agency team will therefore be offered the
opportunity to transfer their employment into Rowans
Hospice Charity and join Hospice at Home to support
the delivery of the new NHS community contract. There
will however be an initial transition period when we will
continue to deliver adult social care to existing clients,
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

appreciated this, and it is always amazing how trust
begins to grow and becomes evident in such a short
period of time. We had to learn how to support
Keith when he was anxious about Joan’s symptoms,
to minimise the sense of feeling overwhelmed with
the situation and watching a loved one dying.
We visited again later that evening and provided
a night sitter who stayed in the house overnight
to support emotionally and with symptom
management as Joan required further medications
to control her pain. Keith initially went to bed so
he could get some rest, which gave him a greater
ability to cope. He did get up part way through the
night to sit with Joan and together, with the night
sitter, he was able to reminisce to which Joan smiled
or made a comment to show she was hearing and a
part of the conversation. This was a valuable time
for Joan and Keith as it enabled them to sit quietly
or talk, without feeling alone.
Joan died within 24 hours of the hospital discharge
and during this time she had a significant number
of visits and care overnight. She passed away, well
cared for with the team and family doing last offices
together. Keith and the family had done a really
good job of caring for Joan prior to the hospital
admission, but recognised the need for support on
her final journey home and were very appreciative
of our support even though it was brief.

recognising the relationships that have been built up
between carers and clients and our commitment to them.
In essence this strategy will extend the reach of end of
life care delivered by Rowans Hospice Charity, offering
care over months as opposed to weeks for those who
wish to die at home and ensure that those employed
by Rowans Care Agency have the opportunity to
maintain their employment, further develop their skills
and be part of a specialised team.
Although this strategy will not directly increase
revenue into Rowans Hospice Charity, it will provide
more care to more people who may in turn wish to
support Rowans Hospice through charitable means.
We also hope that for those working in Hospice
at Home they too will welcome this opportunity
to develop, not only their service but also the
relationships that they will build up with patients and
families over a longer period of time.
Ruth White
Chief Executive
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Therapeutic
Day Care
Services
Day Care staff are proactive in promoting
quality of life; empowering people to take
an active part in their care and building their
resilience through a rehabilitative approach.
This approach puts patients and their families
at the centre of their care, helping them to
source the care and support that is right for
them.
Therapeutic Day Care services are a crucial aspect
of care delivered as part of Hospice care, Rowans
Living Well Centre offer people the opportunity
to engage with the Hospice earlier in their illness.
Accessing these resources earlier enables people to
manage their symptoms with the emphasis being
on living well and then ultimately through advance
planning, maximise their quality of life and support a
good death.
Traditional Day Care is based in the Southwick
Suite at Rowans Hospice – this is a structured 12
week programme of focused support which enables
patients to socialise with others who may be in
similar situations. Traditional Day Care also affords
the opportunity to discuss all aspects of their illness
with a nurse or a therapist. If there are particular
physical, social, emotional or spiritual needs these
can be discussed with experienced staff to assess
whether referral to other services is appropriate, for
example support from psychologist, physiotherapist,
occupational therapist, social worker, spiritual care
chaplain, Clinical Nurse Specialist or a doctor.
Being with different people and surroundings,
spending the day with others can revitalise patients
and offer valuable respite to carers and other family
members. Staff and those who volunteer with us
provide a friendly welcome with plenty of laughter
and emotional support along the way.
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Angela Oakley

In contrast, the staff and volunteers at the Rowans are
generally lovely, giving people who are also trained to
behave in a consistent and supportive manner.

I live on my own and have no
family nearby. My daughter lives 25
miles away, and is herself severely
incapacitated, and therefore is
unable to help me either practically
or emotionally.

I feel that at the Living Well centre, I have been treated
as a person, with opportunities to contribute.

Day Care patient

I have received many small
kindnesses from friends and
neighbours, and often receive
supportive texts, emails and phone
calls, sometimes to the point where
I feel that I’m being pressured
to assure everyone that all is
reasonably well.
However, there is no one that I
can rely on, and there is a limit
to how much one can share with
friends, without driving them away.
Everyone seems to disappear if I
am obviously feeling unwell or very
fatigued. For some people, one is
no longer a normal person with
something to contribute, but is
instead a ‘sick’ person.
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When I was advised by the palliative care doctor
that it would be wise to agree to a non-resuscitation
declaration, it was the Rowans staff who explained
in a clear and caring but non-dramatic way, why this
would be wise. Their tone was just right, and made it
easier to make my decision.

Before attending the Rowans, like many people, I
had not understood the range of positive services
and experiences on offer, and had I known, I could
have volunteered, for example to help with art
groups. Given these positives, the Rowans becomes
a much less scary place. It is not simply a place to
die, but if that is the inevitable outcome, then it is a
place to follow that path as well as one can.

Their ability to talk about anything without
trivialising or over-dramatising, to be serious or jovial
is great. I can talk about things that friends find too
difficult to hear, or that they are not in a position to
understand. I have found some of the effects of my
illness on relationships, including with some doctors,
harder to deal with than the illness itself, not an
uncommon experience I understand. Staff at the
Rowans have helped with these issues too.
Even better, the emphasis at the Rowans is on the
positive, in the moment, on doing relaxing and
enjoyable things, but the support is there if needed.
Further, I have had very helpful practical support,
such as a hospice companion to help me with the
emotional problems of decluttering my home, and
to be a reliable person to take me to and collect me
from chemo. All this support has been tremendously
valuable to me. Simply knowing that there are
people I can turn to is also so very helpful.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018
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Rowans Living Well Centre
The Rowans Living Well Centre is a place where
people diagnosed with a serious illness can spend
time with staff and volunteers exploring any issues
of concern, in addition to accessing a wide range of
services. This care is also available to family, friends
and carers, and those who are bereaved. Our simple
aim is to help people affected by serious illness to
continue to get the most out of life. This is achieved
in part through the design of our building, which
combines a friendly, cheerful atmosphere with light,
airy surroundings close to nature. We also promote
living well through activities designed to create
a therapeutic environment. Development of the
programme is ongoing, current activities include:
Complementary Therapies
There are many different Complementary Therapies but
the most common include Massage, Reflexology and
Aromatherapy. We also offer Soft Tissue Therapy, Clinical
Hypnotherapy and Osteopathy. These therapies can help
reduce stress, anxiety and tension; alleviate aches and
pains; manage phobias; induce sleep; and create a feeling of
restoration. Our complementary therapists treat people in an
atmosphere of calm, relaxation and tranquillity, giving them
space to ‘just be’.

Rehabilitation
We offer multi-professional support to enable people to
live as actively as they can within the limits of their illness.
Rehabilitation focuses on encouragement, help and support
to enable people to maintain their physical independence
for as long as possible and adapt to their changing condition.
For example, a care plan might include participation in the
wellbeing exercise group, some gentle, chair-based exercises,
or a course on how to manage breathlessness. Care plans are
tailored to individual need and designed to maximise quality of
life.

Future Planning
These sessions offer the opportunity to begin to have difficult
conversations; discussing important end of life issues, such as
planning a funeral, conveying preferences about future care, or
writing a statement in advance. Many people have worries and
concerns about expressing future wishes; this course is aimed
at empowerment to make the kind of decisions which can
ultimately help to bring peace of mind.
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Creative Arts Therapy
We use creative arts as part of our
therapeutic environment to stimulate
relaxation and to relieve anxiety and
stress. Activities such as glass painting,
jewellery making, silk painting, card
making and pottery can be a welcome
distraction from the negative emotional
effects of coping with serious illness.
They also offer a valuable opportunity
to socialise with others and share similar
experiences.

Achievements
Through listening to carers attending
Rowans Living Well Centre we have
successfully developed and run a carers’
education programme, we plan to run
more groups
The Centre has supported 290 new
patients this year and 508 new carers in
total these 798 people have attended on
4006 individual occasions – be that for
coffee, to attend a group or for individual
support.
In addition Day Care has had
187 referrals, amounting to 1384
attendances over the year.

Alex’s story
Alex visited Rowans Living Well Centre following
a suggestion by her Hospice Companion who was
supporting her at home. At the time of her visit she was
receiving palliative chemotherapy, to be followed by a
course of radiotherapy, and was unable to attend until
her treatments had been completed. She came for the
first time in March 2017 and attends according to how
she is feeling. She usually comes when she has a specific
health need to discuss. Alex joined the art therapy group,
motivated by her love of creative arts and her own
artistic flare. She has combined her visits to the group
with opportunities to share her health concerns with our
team of nurses, in particular stressful medical situations
and worries around what’s happening with her condition.
Over the months she has attended, Alex has been
supported in preparing plans for her future care and has
engaged with our chaplain, Carol Gully. She describes
her visits to the Centre as “a life-line in a supportive
environment where people understand and have the
time to listen, enabling me to talk about anything.”

Plans
Rowans continues to seek ways to
expand the use of the Living Well
Centre, to develop new programmes
and partnerships with other like-minded
organisations to expand services for
people affected by a serious illness.
In April the Living Well Centre in
partnership with Havant South Downs
College will start a Cookery Course for
the bereaved – this opportunity has
been made possible through a grant
from The Kenwood Foundation (via
the Hampshire and IOW Community
Foundation).
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Mary relishes the opportunity
to relax
Mary started coming to the Living Well Centre following
advice from a healthcare professional. Following an initial
assessment it became clear that Mary would benefit from
attending the carer’s group while her husband, having
complex health needs, would benefit from attending
Day Care. Through the carers’ group Mary has obtained
practical information, received support from other carers,
and been able to explore her emotions. To help her cope
with what she describes as a stressful home situation,
she has been learning some new relaxation techniques.
Mary also took part in a pilot carer’s education course
which we ran over four weeks, aimed at helping carers to
build resilience. The course was very positively evaluated
by Mary and other carers and we shall use their input to
develop it further.
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Community Care
There are an estimated 60,000 veterans
living in Hampshire, with large numbers
located in Gosport, Fareham and Havant.
Research suggests that those aged over 75
represent 46% of the veteran population,
with many experiencing loneliness and
isolation.
Rowans Hospice has received an Aged Veterans
grant from the Chancellor using LIBOR funds to
develop a new service that extends hospice care
to local veterans and their families. However,
veterans of all ages are invited to make contact with
the hospice for a bespoke assessment. Aim being
to support families who have served in the armed
forces who have serious and life limiting illness;
supporting those who are socially isolated or in
need of support to improve quality of life. This may
include accessing services provided through Rowans
Living Well Centre, support from a Clinical Nurse
Specialist in palliative and end of life care or support
from a Veteran Companion; a volunteer who has
served in the armed forces and can offer practical
help, companionship and a listening ear.

Achievements
Since the service started in Jan 2018 the Clinical
Nurse Specialist has been proactively meeting other
organisations which support people who have
served in the armed forces.
Recently a veteran with a palliative care diagnosis
was looking to relocate to outside our area to be
near family and needed support with how to go
about this. The Clinical Nurse Specialist was able
to identify agencies local to the family and arranged
contact to view sheltered accommodation. Links
were also made with the local SSAFA caseworker.
The new service was able to support the veteran
and the family to ensure a smooth transition to a
new ‘home’ and alleviating stress and anxiety.

Community care has always been an integral part
of Hospice care provided by staff, volunteers and
statutory care providers alongside and in partnership
with other charities and community groups.
Enhancing the resilience of our community to care for
those at the end of life is a priority for the Hospice.
Our ambition is to strengthen communities through
specialist education and training, both formal and
informal, working alongside others to ensure people
receive appropriate and timely care as they become
frailer and approach the end of their lives.

Achievements
Specialist Palliative Care Social Workers are key
members of the Hospice care team; they are
instrumental in supporting people when they are
discharged home and provide ongoing monitoring as
needed. The Social Workers ensure care delivered
at home by social carers is appropriate for the need
and offer, in the same way as all other Hospice care
professionals, emotional and psychological support
in order to maintain patients in their own homes
and avoid unnecessary and unwanted hospital or
hospice admission.

161

Total referrals received from the Hospice

Average case load is

Rowans Veteran Living Well Service work alongside
a number of charities within the area which support
those that have served in the armed forces, offering
a collaborative approach.

Re-ablement

patients

Rowans Hospice has been commissioned to provide
a Specialist Reablement Palliative Care Social Worker
to work directly with the community of Portsmouth,
taking referrals from the NHS Clinical Nurse Specialists
in Palliative Care and General Practitioners. Together
with an Independence Support Assistant the Social
Worker ensures social needs and support are provided
in the home.
Total referrals this year has been
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Remind
Rowans Hospice continues to work in partnership
with Solent Mind and Social Care in Action, as part
of the Remind service. This service supports those
people living in Portsmouth who have a diagnosis
of dementia; from diagnosis to end of life. This
supportive pathway provides support to families and
lay carers as well as the person with dementia. The
Hospice, through skilled Clinical Nurse Specialists
provides specialist dementia care and support at
the end of life, when there are complex symptoms
and heightened emotional distress. This service
demonstrates our desire to work with other partners
and to extend the reach beyond caring for people
with cancer and other life-limiting illnesses.

71

Referrals to the Remind service CNS
nurses this year.

“We value our partnership with Rowans Hospice and hold
it in high regard. We have been working together for over
two years now with the Remind Service and we have
strengthened our relationship by valuing the skillset each
organisation has to offer. We hope to continue working
together in the future and building on the foundations of
our relationship.” - Solent Mind, lead provider for the
Remind Portsmouth Dementia service.

Hospice Companions
The role of a Hospice Companion is an essential
component of support within the community offering
a range of domestic, practical and emotional support
activities to relieve the patient and carer some of
the burdensome tasks that require attention. This
allows the family/carer to concentrate on being with
the person who is ill. Although a free service, in that
it is provided by volunteers, the charity provides
the funding for management, on going training and
supervision.
Hospice Companions provided 303
visits having received 71 referrals

303
visits
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Bereavement Support

George my son,
Meerkat Service

When we have a significant loss in our lives
as a result of a relative or a friend dying it can
be one of the most challenging experiences
we will ever face. The care we offer does not
end when someone dies.

Rowans Meerkat Service provides specialist support
to assist children and young people who have had
a significant adult (such as a parent or grandparent)
diagnosed with a serious illness. Meerkats work
alongside families with children up to the age of 18,
offering pre – bereavement and post- bereavement
support.

Achievements
Rowans Hospice along with NHS Clinical
Psychologists is now able to offer an integrated
model of care to support those people who are
psychologically distressed before bereavement and
those who have been bereaved. All services for the
bereaved can now be accessed through Rowans
Living Well Centre.

The Meerkat service aims to support young people
to adjust to a significant life changing event. With
additional specialist support for the surviving family
our aim is to reduce psychological distress for all the
family members especially children and
young people.

Group Support
At Rowans Living Well Centre group support is
offered to those recently bereaved; those needing
ongoing support and those seeking new friend’s.

Achievements for Rowans Psychology
and Bereavement Service

Individual support
For others it can be helpful to have the opportunity
to have one to one support with someone who is
not connected to their family and friends. If individual
support is needed, a team of professionals is available;
Psychologists, trained Counsellors and Family Service
Volunteers, who have the capacity to listen in a
sensitive, empathic and non judgmental way.

Memorial Events
Rowans Hospice holds a number of memorial events
to provide meaningful occasions for remembering
someone, these include Lake of Lights, Moonlit
Memories Walk, Children’s Starlit Walk and the Annual
Memorial and Thanksgiving Service. For those who are
recently bereaved there is an invitation to the Tree of
Lights at the Hospice in the lead up to Christmas.

22
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106 people
have been offered one to one
support from the team of
Family Service Volunteers
who provide ‘listening’ support
Referrals to Psychology
team

232

with an average case load
for the combined team of

89
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Meerkat
referrals

78

George* (7), was constantly upset at bedtimes
and saying that he wanted to be with his
Grandad whenever we spoke about Grandad
and the fun memories we had together he
became so tearful and upset. George was also
convinced that Grandad would return and that
if he prayed every night, he would see him
again and that Grandad wouldn’t leave him.
I have found Sophie so helpful and kind. She
has been amazing for myself and George,
always there to listen and remembers in detail
all the information that either myself or George
have talked about with her. It has been lovely
having Sophie there to discuss how he has
been at home and she offers great advice and
support to deal with situations. George is now
able to understand and deal with his feelings/
emotions when he’s upset/having a bad day
missing his lovely Grandad and is coming to
terms that he knows Grandad won’t be coming
back.
(Childs name has been changed)

Paul

Paul* had become very angry and withdrawn
after the death of my mother, his grandmother.
He felt that he couldn’t talk to me as I cried too
much. We had no-one else really.
Helen has been amazing. Paul went to his first
meeting hunched up and tearful. He left his last
meeting confident and smiling. Paul now feels
he is able to talk to me and has mechanisms in
place to deal with his emotions. This has been
an amazing support, we can finally talk together
and see light at the end of the tunnel.
(Childs name has been changed)
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Fundraising
All of the services we provide are free from discrimination
and free of charge. To continue to do this the Rowans
Hospice needed to raise £5.8 million to fund charitable
activities during 2017/18. The fundraising team and Retail
Trading Company raised a large proportion of this money
allowing the Hospice to continue delivering and developing
the care that is needed within our community.
The fundraising approach taken by the
Rowans Hospice
Our aim at the Rowans is always to fundraise in an
ethical manner. With the new regulations that are
coming with GDPR we decided to go to ‘opt-in’
for everyone on our database. We have sent out
two communications over the last 6 months and
have managed the response and adjusted our data
accordingly. We will only send communication to
those who want it in the method they have agreed to.
We are signed up to the Fundraising Regulator and
Fundraising Code of Practise and are using the FR
logo on our marketing material.
The only third party acting on our behalf is Lottery
Fundraising Services (LFS) with whom we have
regular calls and meetings. We have regular
inductions with lottery canvassers and we monitor
their actions by telephoning new lottery members to
ensure they are happy and did not feel coerced in to
signing up.
LFS has a vulnerable person’s policy and also gives
dementia training for all their canvassers, together
with a solicitation statement.
Named persons are Theresa Bailey (Director of
Marketing and Fundraising) and Alison Calver
(Fundraising Manager).

Fundraising Team
The fundraising team had another successful year
that was well supported by our local communities.
Our regular events run by the Hospice team, raised
a fantastic £424,155 which was +6.2% compared
to target. Our tenth anniversary of our Moonlit
Memory Walk was extremely well supported with
1450 walkers raising £172K.
Excluding legacies £1.9 Million was raised by
voluntary income.
Our Grand Summer Draw, Grand Christmas Draw
and new spring 3-2-1 raffle raised between them
£86,355 which was a +1.8% increase on last year.
The Rowans Hospice Lottery brought in £489,789
with 2,962 new members signing up during the year.
Regular giving income has overall maintained its
level at £93,164 with no real growth.
Community fundraising raised £270,610 from
sponsorship income and organised events. Our
Hospice Support Groups raised £95,186 and our
corporate engagement is growing each year with a
total of £65,614 being raised this year. We continue
to enjoy support from our corporate partners at all
our events where their ‘hands on’ support is very
much appreciated.

Objectives
It is important that we consistently review each
event to make sure that it is viable and bringing in
an acceptable return on the investment of time and
money. We will be looking at how we can engage
with our local community to further build on our
Support Groups, Corporates and local businesses.
We believe through more education about our
services we could increase support and therefore
will be focusing on bringing more of the service
user voice into our marketing as this will help
enormously.

24

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2017-2018

25

Rowans Hospice Trading
Company – Rowans Retail

Key Risks

The Retail arm of The Rowans Hospice has achieved an outstanding
performance in the year with a total trading income growth of 8.6% on the
previous year, and on a like for like basis. This result has been achieved by the
extensive knowledge and experience of the staff within our Retail shops, our
Logistics team and within the Donation and Processing Centre. Volunteers are
very important to the Rowans and never more so than in the Retail operation
where we would not be able to operate without the support of our 600+
volunteers and to whom we are very grateful in that they give their time
freely and donated a total of 98,371 hours in the year. This creates a saving of
£772,215 based on the National Living Wage of £8.45 per hour.

The key risks are discussed below along with the risk mitigation steps.

The sales and profit growth is particularly noteworthy
since the retail market has its share of challenges
generally, according to the law firm RPC the number
of retailers entering insolvency has increased by 7%
to 1,071, where they state the reasons as high costs
and the increasing shift from the high street to the
internet where sales at the top 20 e-commerce sites
increased by 23%. We ourselves have developed
an online operation so that we remain competitive
and where we also have the opportunity to sell
those more obscure or specialist items, to what is an
international audience!
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Again, we acknowledge the skills and experience of
our staff and volunteers for the success of the Retail
division in the year, but we would not have been
able to achieve these results without the support of
our local community who donate their goods to us
time and time again and we are so thankful for their
donations.
There is no doubt there will be interesting
challenges ahead for us in the 2018/19 year but we
have planned opportunities to further develop our
staff and volunteers within the Retail operation and
the infrastructure around which it operates.
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To manage key risks, the Hospice and the trading companies, maintain a risk and opportunity register.
These are regularly updated and are a standing item at each Board, sub-committee and Executive team
meeting.

Risk

Risk Mitigation

The Rowans Hospice
Clinical risk aspects

•
•
•
•
•

Clinical Governance framework and strategy review
Appropriate staff addressing risk at forums and other meetings
Critical incident review process
Complaints procedure
Reporting in minutes, communication, cascading of information
at all levels

Hospice reputation and standing within
the community

•
•

Consideration of work and new funding initiatives
Complaints policy

Insufficient funding

•
•
•
•
•

Appraisal, budgeting and authorisation procedures
Timely and accurate financial monitoring and reporting
Fundraising strategy in place
Reserves policy
Legacy contingency reserve

Trading Income levels:

•
•
•
•

Retail Strategy
Balanced Scorecard - Key Metrics Review
GA Procedures
Performance Management Procedures

Sufficient numbers of Volunteers/Staff
and their development:

•
•
•
•

Volunteer Recruitment Policy
People Strategy and Learning & Development Policy
Performance and Appraisal Reviews
Business Partner Reviews

Increased Competition:

•
•
•
•

Retail Strategy
Retail Marketing Strategy
Shop Maintenance & Development Programme
Site Acquisition Procedure

Rowans Retail
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Financial Review
Overview

Income

Investments

The Hospice Group made a surplus of £251K for 2017/18, compared to a surplus of £2.3
million in the previous year. This reflects plans by the hospice to invest more in charitable
activities, a significant decrease in gifts in wills that the hospice has received this year and total
return on investments reducing from £700K in 2016/17 to £170K in 2017/18.

Total hospice income was £9.1 million in 2017/18,
this is an overall decrease of £573K compared to the
previous year.

The Hospice held £6.8 million in investments at 31 March
2018. These had earned £240K of dividends during the
year and had unrealised losses of £74K during the year.

The amount that the hospice has received as gifts
in people’s wills has declined by £1 million. This was
because the Hospice was the recipient of exceptional
amounts of generosity in 2016/17, receiving legacies
to a similar level as many national charities. In 2017/18
the hospice received £2.7 million in gifts in wills, this
means that people who remembered the Hospice in
their will provided 30% of the resources needed to run
the hospice this year. The importance of gifts left in
people’s wills in meeting the on-going cost of running
the hospice cannot be over stated.

The investment portfolio was managed by Sarasin and
Partners throughout 2017/18. The investment managers
reported quarterly on investment performance and
attend a trustees meeting annually to present and discuss
investment performance.

The hospice saw a surplus during 2017/18 in spite of trustees approving plans to invest
in charitable activities and thus run the charity at a deficit. In line with the plans to run at a
deficit, expenditure has increased this year allowing the hospice to work on new and improved
charitable activities. Offsetting this planned increase in expenditure was another year when the
hospice received exceptional generosity from people leaving gifts in wills far in excess of what
the hospice could have expected or budgeted for, however lower than in the previous year.
Expenditure
Total Rowans group expenditure increased by £911K
to £8.8 million in the 2017/18 financial year. Costs
of charitable activities have increased by £541K, this
is made up of increases in all areas of the Hospice’s
charitable activities and is the result of Trustee’s plans to
consume accumulated reserves and invest in charitable
activities.
The largest single cost to Rowans Hospice is the
operation of the 19 bed in-patient unit which cost £3.5
million for the year, the majority of this cost is staff costs
including nursing salaries, doctors and consultants and
a share of the multi-disciplinary team salary costs. The
cost of the in-patient unit increased by £238K over the
previous year seeing greater investment into nursing and
doctor’s posts. Part of the increased cost of doctors was
met out of grant funding or was recharged to other local
providers that share in the responsibility of delivering
palliative care to our community. £3.3 million is the
equivalent to £505 per room per night, this compares
favourably with a Marie Currie estimate from 2012 that
it should cost £425 per night for specialist palliative care
(£484 adjusted for inflation).
Hospice at Home costs have increased by £77K as
a result of new posts in 2017/18. These posts were
to focus on supporting people who were currently in
Hospital or in the Hospice and wanted to go home.

£145K of the increase in non-charitable costs was the
cost of growth in Rowans Care Agency. Growth in the
Care Agency was desired and in line with expectations,
costs were favourable compared to budget and growth
targets were being met. As is discussed elsewhere within
the accounts the services being delivered by Rowans
Care Agency are being transferred into the hospice
to allow us to take advantage of a new charitable
opportunity.
The care agency was set up to deliver a contribution to
the cost of running the hospice, but it was planned as
a social enterprise. Through their roles in the hospice
and in the wider community Trustees and Hospice staff
identifies a need in our community. There was a lack
of social care services available. So Hospice, hospital
and other patients and the wider public were often left
unable to access Social care and in particular high quality
care. Rowans Care Agency was set up both to generate
a contribution to the cost of Rowans Hospice but also to
meet this need in the Hospice’s community.
The majority of the clients that have benefitted and are
benefitting from the Care agency, met the criteria to be
eligible for care from the hospice’s charitable services. As
such the trustees see their write off of the accumulated
losses to date of Rowans Care Agency as charitable
expenditure of the Hospice.

£667K of Hospice income came from the NHS, this
equates to 7% of total hospice income or 12% of
charitable costs.
The trading company generated £1.9 million of revenue
in the group accounts; however on top of this the
trading company generated an additional £795K of
retail gift aid income for the hospice. After taking
account of the retail gift aid and the charges for services
received by the trading company that were eliminated
on consolidation the trading company generate a net
contribution to the Hospice of £563K for the year, this
is a net profit of 20.9%.

Reserves
The hospice held £14.0 million in reserves at the end
of the year, of this figure £165K is restricted and £10
million has been designated for specific purposes
(these designated funds are analysed in note 19 to the
accounts). After accounting for restricted and designated
funds £4.8 million of unrestricted funds remain. This
equates to 8.5 months charitable expenditure based on
the 2018/19 budgeted expenditure, the current target
is to hold 7 months charitable expenditure.

During the year the hospice entered into a tender process
to review current investment managers and consider if
a change in investment manager was desirable. At the
end of this process a decision was made to transfer the
hospice’s investments to CCLA investment managers, this
transfer is taking place in early 2018/19.
The Sarasin and Partners Portfolio held the following
ethical stance. Investments are not held in tobacco and
should only be invested in companies involved in Alcohol,
Gambling, Armaments and Pornography if it is incidental
to their business (less than 10%).
The hospice holds two investment portfolios, a medium
term portfolio and a longer term portfolio. The two
portfolios have a different risk profile because of different
investment horizons. A composite benchmark has been
agreed with the investment managers that investment
performance is measured against.
For the 12 months to 31 March the longer term portfolio
earned a return of 2.9%, this was 0.2% below the bench
mark given to our investment managers for expected
investment return. The shorter term portfolio achieved a
return of 0.0%, this was 1.3% below the benchmark.

The cost of Therapeutic day Care services have increased
by £144K to £722K, this is the result of the planned
expansion in services at the new Living Well Centre.
Non-charitable costs have increased by £371K. Within
this increase The Rowans Trading Company saw a £140K
increase in costs. The Rowans Trading Company was
particularly successful as this increased investment
lead to an additional £271K (11%) of income and lead
to a £139K (33%) increase in the trading company’s
contribution to the hospice.
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Structure, Governance and Management

Trustee Recruitment and Training

The Rowans Hospice is a charitable company limited by
Guarantee, registered in England and Wales, Company
Number 2275068 and a Registered Charity Number
299731. It was incorporated on 7 July 1988 and is
governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Trustees Recruitment and Appointment
All Members of the Hospice are notified in writing of
Trustee vacancies. In consultation with the Honorary
Chairman of Trustees, it will be decided if external
recruitment will be pursued. This will be determined
based on the current skills of Trustees and identifying
shortages of skills/knowledge.

Trustees, Trustees Appointments, Induction
and Training

All candidates applying for the position of Trustee will
follow a recruitment and selection process. Prospective
trustees will be interviewed by a panel consisting of
trustees, representatives of the membership and the
Chief Executive. The panel will produce a short list of
suitable applicants prior to formal interviews.

The Charity is governed the Board of Trustees, which is
responsible for the strategic management of the Hospice.
Members of the Board of Trustees are also directors
under company law.
Not less than six or more than twelve trustees are
appointed by the members and, annually, one third retire,
being those trustees who have been the longest in office.

The recommendations of the Interview Panel will be
made to the full Board of Trustees and any successful
applicants will be co-opted until the next AGM, when
members will have the opportunity to ratify the
appointment.

Full meetings of the Board took place on seven occasions
in 2017/2018. The Board is supported in decision making
by detailed scrutiny and recommendations provided by
the board sub-committees the Clinical Executive Group,
Ethics Executive Group, Finance Audit and Income
Generation Executive Group and the HR and Estates
Executive Group. Each executive group meets quarterly in
the weeks before the board meetings.

Trustees Induction and Training
The Chairman of the Board of Trustees will ensure that
an appropriate Induction Training Program is arranged
and completed within three months of appointment.
The induction comprises formal induction training
including: clarification of legal responsibilities, Charity
Commission requirements of Trustees, strategic issues,
governance issues, familiarity with the Memorandum
and Articles of Association and all relevant induction
material to allow Trustees to understand the Charity’s
purpose, financial position and current issues.

The Hospice board of trustees appoints Directors of the
Hospices subsidiaries.
During the year the following Trustees were in post
Mrs E Emms (Honorary Chairman)
Mr Ian Young (Honorary Vice Chairman)
Mrs C Hewitt (Honorary Treasurer)

Formal meetings are arranged for a new Trustee to
meet with all Hospice Executive Group members and
department heads. An appraisal meeting between the
Chair and the new Trustee will be arranged six months
after appointment.

Mrs L Dickens
Mr R Harrison
The Very Rev D Brindley
(Stepped down 6 September 2017)

Management Team

Mrs A Powell

The Trustees are responsible for the overall management
of the Hospice. To achieve this they have appointed
a management team who are full time paid employees
of the Charity. The Chief Executive leads the team to
spearhead the Charity’s implementation of its objectives
in a tough and ever changing health and social care
market.

Mrs W Greenish
Mrs V West
Dr R Sutton
Mrs E Dixon
Mr T Saunders

The Hospice Executive Group comprises:
Ruth White

Chief Executive

P J Morey

Medical Director

Erika Lipscombe

Director of Clinical Services/
Matron

Jenny Redman

Director of Quality

Carol Milner

Director of People Services
& Retail

Mark Van Wijk

Director of Finance

Amanda Clapham

Director of Marketing and
Income Generation
(until 2 October 2017)

Theresa Bailey

Director of Marketing
and Fundraising
(Since 30 October 2017)

The Trustees have approved a detailed schedule of
delegations to make it clear which decisions are reserved
for the Board of Trustees and which can be made by
board sub groups or members of the Hospice Executive
Group.

Setting Pay
The Rowans Hospice Board has a dedicated
Remuneration Sub- Committee, which considers
remuneration across the Group and makes
recommendations to the respective Boards. This SubCommittee meets at least annually in advance of budget
setting for each Company.
Remunerated roles within the Rowans Hospice are
regularly benchmarked against a number of different
channels; an Agenda for Change based scheme (NHS
payment and awards scheme), other hospices locally
and nationally and other business sectors. The Rowans
Hospice observes the Living Wage for all employees
across the group.

Relationships with Other Organisations
Part of the success of the service can be attributed to the
partnership between the voluntary independent sector,
the NHS and Social Care Services.
The local community based NHS Specialist Palliative Care
Services and the Hospital NHS Specialist Palliative Care
Team at Queen Alexandra Hospital (Portsmouth Hospitals
Trust) and The Rowans Hospice work in partnership
to provide a seamless service across hospice, hospital
and community for the benefit of the patients and their
families/carers. A high standard of care and specialist
treatments are offered by a skilled and experienced multiprofessional team.
The level of collaboration is demonstrated by NHS staff
being based out of the Hospice and a number of roles
within the hospice being jointly funded by NHS trusts,
Social Services and The Rowans Hospice.
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Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities
Trustees, who are also Directors of The Rowans Hospice
for the purposes of company law, are responsible for
preparing the Trustees’ report (including the Group
Strategic Report) and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company and the group’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Charity and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and the Charities SORP.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable
company and group as at the balance sheet date, and of
the charitable company’s and group’s net movement in
funds, including income and expenditure, for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the charitable company and the group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply
•
•
•

•

them consistently;
observe the methods and principles in the Charities
SORP;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;
prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company and group will continue in
operation.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
So far as each of the Trustees is aware at the time the
report is approved:

• there is no relevant audit information of which the

company and the group’s auditors are unaware, and
the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to
have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditors
are aware of that information.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
•

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
The Rowans Hospice
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The
Rowans Hospice for the year ended 31 March 2018
which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Activities, the Group and Charity Balance Sheets, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an Auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the charitable company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.
In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the

•

group’s and of the parent charitable company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of the group’s
net movement in funds, including the income and
expenditure, for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The Trustees’ report incorporating the strategic report was approved and authorised by the Board of Trustees on
4 July 2018 and is signed on their behalf by

•

Elizabeth Emms
Honorary Chairman

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the group in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Responsibilities of Trustees for the financial
statements
As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities
statement set out on page 32, the trustees (who are also
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are
responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the group or
the parent charitable company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
•
•

the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial
statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the
parent charitable company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Trustees’ Annual Report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit:
•

•

the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report
(which incorporates the strategic report and the
directors’ report) for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and
the Trustees’ Annual Report (which incorporates
the strategic report and the directors’ report) has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Financial Accounts

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of
the group and the parent charitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’
Annual Report (which incorporates the strategic report
and the directors’ report).

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (including Income and
Expenditure Account) for the Year Ended 31 March 2018			

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by
•
•
•

the parent charitable company; or
the parent charitable company financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

Anna Bennett
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of
haysmacintyre, Statutory Auditor

10 Queen Street Place
London
EC4R 1AG

Date:___________________________________________________

Designated
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds
2018

Total Funds
2017

£

£

£

£

£

Notes
Income From:
Donations and legacies
Charitable activities
Fundraising
Investment income
The Rowans Hospice
Trading Company
Rowans Care Agency

2
3
5
6
4

4,539,101
907,621
1,111,042
242,977
1,904,422

-

63,858
177,294
9
-

4,602,959
1,084,915
1,111,042
242,986
1,904,422

5,627,942
994,673
1,029,774
178,009
1,854,887

4

200,660

-

-

200,660

34,302

8,905,823

-

241,161

9,146,984

9,719,587

7

764,207

-

-

764,207

678,904

4

2,062,731

-

-

2,062,731

1,922,902

4

256,528

-

-

256,528

111,190

8
8

3,469,446
759,160

-

38,272
27,940

3,507,718
787,100

3,270,062
709,825

8

646,156

-

75,681

721,837

577,519

8
8
8

201,593
305,326
158,028

-

30,550
25,880

201,593
335,876
183,908

168,437
315,213
156,200

8,623,175

-

198,323

8,821,498

7,910,252

Total Income

__________________________________________________

Unrestricted
Funds

Expenditure on:
Raising Funds
Fundraising
The Rowans Hospice
Trading Company
Rowans Care Agency
Charitable Activities
In-patient care
Hospice at Home
Therapeutic day care
services
Community care
Bereavement support
Education and training
Total Expenditure
Net Gains/(Losses) on
Investments

( 73,656 )

-

-

Net Income

208,992

-

42,838

251,830

2,333,958

( 1,014,583 )

1,014,583

-

-

-

( 805,591 )

1,014,583

42,838

251,830

2,333,958

Transfer between funds
Net Movement in
Funds

( 73,656 )

524,623

Reconciliation of Funds
Total funds brought
forward

4,597,941

9,037,589

121,838

13,757,368

11,423,410

Total funds carried
forward

3,792,350

10,052,172

164,676

14,009,198

13,757,368

The Statement of Financial Activities also complies with the requirements for an income and expenditure account
under the Companies Act 2006.											
Comparative figures by fund for the year to 31 March 2017 are detailed in notes 19 and 26. 			
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Consolidated and Charity Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018
		
Fixed Assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Notes
12
13

Total Fixed Assets
Current Assets
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

11,394,774

14

Total Current Assets
Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

15

Net Current Assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Provision for liabilities

Group
2018
£
4,552,172
6,842,602

16

Total Net Assets

Group
2017
£
4,537,589
6,703,124
11,240,713

Charity
2018
£
4,494,131
6,842,605
11,336,736

Charity
2017
£
4,409,685
6,703,127
11,112,812

Notes
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

8,922
1,819,609
1,507,227

7,555
1,385,840
1,574,729

2,007,650
1,113,509

2,009,929
1,076,405

3,335,758

2,968,124

3,121,159

3,086,334

Net cash used in investing activities

( 697,684 )

( 427,819 )

( 495,548 )

( 397,676 )

2,638,074

2,540,305

2,625,611

2,688,658

14,032,848
( 23,650 )

13,781,018
( 23,650 )

13,962,347
-

13,801,470
-

14,009,198

13,757,368

13,962,347

13,801,470

18

164,676

121,838

164,676

121,838

Unrestricted funds
General funds
Revaluation reserve

19
19

3,248,452
543,898

3,980,387
617,554

3,259,642
543,898

4,152,393
617,554

3,792,350

4,597,941

3,803,540

4,769,947

10,052,172

9,037,589

9,994,131

8,909,685

14,009,198

13,757,368

13,962,347

13,801,470

19

						

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Dividends and interest from investments
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Cash transferred to investments

Reserves
Restricted funds

Designated funds

Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for The Year Ended 31 March 2018 					

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

21

Group
2018
£

Group
2017
£

215,126

1,154,720

242,986
( 312,480 )
( 213,134 )

178,009
( 1,199,909 )
( 746,634 )

( 282,628 )

( 1,768,534 )

( 67,502 )

( 613,814 )

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

1,574,729

2,188,543

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

1,507,227

1,574,729

						
The notes form part of these financial statements

On behalf of the board					
Mrs E Emms
Honorary Chairman

Mrs C Hewitt
Honorary Treasurer			

Company Registration Number: 2275068
Charity Registration Number: 299731											
The turnover for the charity (i.e. excluding The Rowans Trading Company and Rowans Care Agency) was £7.6m (2017
£8.3 m) and the net movement in funds in the charity was £0.2m (2017: £2.4m).					
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018
1

Accounting policies						
Company information						

The Rowans Hospice is a private company limited by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales.
The registered office is Purbrook Heath Road, Purbrook, Waterlooville, Hampshire, PO7 5RU.

Accounting convention						

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”), “Accounting and Reporting by Charities” the Statement of
Recommended Practice for charities applying FRS 102, the Companies Act 2006, and UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015. The charity is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS
102.
The accounts are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. 				
The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies adopted
are set out below.						
Legal Status - The charity is incorporated as a company limited by guarantee having no share capital and, in
accordance with the Memorandum of Association, every member is liable to contribute a sum of £1 in the event
of the company being wound up.						
Group financial statements - The accounts consolidate the financial statements of The Rowans Hospice and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, The Rowans Hospice Trading Company Ltd (02300646) & Rowans Care Agency Ltd
(08401725), on a line-by-line basis. Transactions and balances between the charity and its subsidiaries have
been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.						
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate Statement of Financial Activities or Income
and Expenditure account has been presented for the charity alone. 						
Going concern - At the time of approving the accounts, the trustees believe the Charity and group has adequate
financial resources and is well placed to manage its business risks. The Trustees believe there are no material
uncertainties that call into doubt the charity’s ability to continue. The accounts therefore have been prepared on
the basis that the charity and group is a going concern.						

Fund Accounting 						

The charity maintains various types of funds as follows:						
Restricted Funds - Restricted income funds are subject to specific restrictions imposed by the donor or by the
nature of the appeal.						
General Unrestricted Funds - General unrestricted funds represent unrestricted income which is expendable at
the discretion of the trustees in the furtherance of the objects of the charity.
Designated Funds - Designated funds represent amounts which have been set aside out of unrestricted funds at
the discretion of the trustees to fund planned future expenditure or manage identified risks.			

Income						

All income is accounted for when the charity has entitlement, the receipt is probable and the amount is
measurable.						
Donations - Donations and all other receipts from fundraising are reported gross and the related fundraising
costs are reported in other expenditure.						
Legacies - Legacies are recognised when all the three criteria below are met:					
a. Establish entitlement – in practice this would be estate accounts being finalised or cash received or where
there is agreement on an interim distribution.						
b. Where receipt is probable – being named in a will makes a receipt probable.				

Grants (Including Government Grants) - Grants, where related to performance and specific deliverables, are
accounted for as the charity earns the right to consideration by its performance. Where the grant is received in
advance of performance, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors.
Where entitlement occurs before the grant is received, it is accrued in debtors.				
Gifts in kind - are included at valuation and recognised as income, expenditure and fixed assets, as appropriate.
Volunteers - No amounts are included in the financial statements for services donated by volunteers – with
volunteers contributing over 12,000 hours during the year, the amount involved is significant but difficult to
quantify.						

Expenditure

Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis where there is a legal and constructive obligation to make a
payment to a third party and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably, expenditure is allocated
to the appropriate headings relevant to the charitable activities; namely fundraising, In-Patient Care, Hospice
at Home, Therapeutic Day Care Services, Community Care, Bereavement Support and Education and Training.
Where expenditure relates to more than one cost category, it is apportioned. The method of apportionment uses
the most appropriate basis for each department. Reference should be made to note 8 for further information on
the allocation of costs. Any irrecoverable VAT is included with the costs to which it relates.
The support costs, which include governance costs and are shown in note 8, support the whole of the charitable
activities. Support costs are allocated to the charitable expenditure headings. The method of apportionment uses
the most appropriate basis for each department. Support costs include people services, information technology,
facilities, finance and governance costs.
Tangible fixed assets - Tangible fixed assets are included at cost, assets at below £500 in value are not
capitalised.
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis, in order to write off the assets over their useful lives. 		
Land and Buildings

50 years or the expected life of the lease					

Fixtures and Fittings

5 years					

Computer Equipment

3 years					

Motor Vehicles

6 years					

Fixed assets are subject to a review for impairment where there is an indication of a reduction in their carrying
value.						
Any impairment is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which it
occurs.
Investments - Investments are valued at the mid-market price. Realised and unrealised gains and losses for the
year are shown in the statement of financial activities.						
Stock - Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cash and cash equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held in Rowans bank
accounts.						
Financial instruments - The charity operates basic financial instruments in terms of its assets and liabilities.
Financial instruments are recognised when the charity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument and derecognised when the company’s contractual obligations expire or are discharged or cancelled.
Basic financial assets - Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank
balances, are measured at settlement amount.						
Basic financial liabilities - Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are recognised at
settlement amount.												
Leasing - Operating lease rentals are recognised in the statement of financial activities as incurred. All of the
charity’s leases and hire agreements are considered to be operating leases.					

c. The amount is measurable – in practice this could come from estate accounts, cash received or
correspondence from executors/solicitors confirming an amount to be distributed. Measurability will also be
				
met where a reasonably accurate assessment can be made of the value.
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Pensions - The charity contributes to the NHS pension scheme or, employees not entitled to join the NHS
scheme are autoenroled into the Group defined contribution pension schemes. Contributions are charged to the
profit and loss account as they become payable.						
Critical accounting judgements and estimates - In preparing these financial statements, management has
made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the charity’s accounting policies and
the reported assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and the disclosures made in the financial statements.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key areas
that are deemed to be material for these financial statements are as follows:					

4.

Income from Trading Activities of Subsidiaries
The Rowans Hospice Trading Company Limited (02300646) operates retail outlets selling donated goods. The
registered address of The Rowans Hospice Trading Comapny is The Rowans Hospice, Purbrook Heath Road,
Waterlooville, Hants, PO7 5RU.
The Rowans Hospice Trading Company Limited covenants its profit to the charity. A summary of its trading results
is shown below.

Income
Turnover
Interest receivable

2018
Trading Co
Accounts
£
2,558,541
171

2018
Consolidated
Accounts
£
2,558,541
171

2017
Trading Co
Accounts
£
2,353,582
657

2017
Consolidated
Accounts
£
2,353,582
657

Total income

2,558,712

2,558,712

2,354,239

2,354,239

Accruing for income derived from legacies where complicated issues surrounding the measurement of the group’s
entitlement to income existed at the year end.								
Expected useful economic life of fixed assets.

						

2.

Donations and Legacies						
Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Funds
£

2018
£

2017
£

794,778
990,608
2,733,471
20,244

13,208
20,000
30,650

794,778
1,003,816
2,753,471
50,894

572,856
1,010,478
3,780,440
264,168

4,539,101

63,858

4,602,959

5,627,942

Donations
- Retail Gift Aid Donations
- Other Donations
Legacies
Grant Making Trusts

					

3.

Income Excluding Intercompany
Transactions
Expenditure
Cost of sales

							

Unrestricted
Funds
£
718,223
73,429
82,406
33,563

Restricted
Funds
£
43,438
107,976
25,880

2018
£
718,223
116,867
190,382
59,443

2017
£
749,853
91,251
88,998
64,571

907,621

177,294

1,084,915

994,673

							

-

( 654,290 )

-

(499,352)

2,558,712

1,904,422

2,354,239

1,854,887

2,135,930

2,135,930

2,003,534

2,003,534

Less Intercompany Transactions
Charges for services provided by
Rowans Hospice
Expenditure excluding Intercompany
Transactions

Income from Charitable Activities						

NHS Contract
Social Services Funding
Grants
Education Income

Less Intercompany Transactions
Charge for operating the retail gift aid
scheme

Profit
Total Contribution to the Hospice
Profit
Charges for services provided by
Rowans Hospice
Donations generated via the retail gift
aid scheme
Gift aid on these donations
Total Contribution to Hospice

( 73,199 )
2,135,930
422,782

2,062,731
( 158,309 )

( 80,632 )
2,003,534
350,705

1,922,902
( 68,015 )

( 158,309 )

( 68,015 )

( 73,199 )

( 80,632 )

639,378

462,348

155,400

110,508

563,270

424,209
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5.

4. Income from Trading Activities of Subsidiaries continued
						

2018
£
( 158,309 )
( 422,781 )
581,090

Net loss
Amount distributed to charity as gift aid
Net charge to the hospice
Retained in subsidiary

2017
£
( 68,015 )
( 350,705 )
418,720

-

Total assets
Total liabilities
Funds (representing share capital and reserves)

2018
£
525,168
( 478,360 )

2017
£
671,309
( 624,501 )

46,808

46,808

1,111,042

6.

Income
Turnover
Total income
Expenditure
Cost of sales
Less Intercompany Transactions
Charges for services provided by Rowans Hospice
Expenditure excluding Intercompany
Transactions
Profit/(Loss) on operations
Other Income
Write off of debt by parent charity
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year

Net Profit/(Loss)
Net charge to the hospice
Retained in subsidiary

Total assets
Total liabilities
Funds (representing share capital and reserves)
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273,821

273,821

2017
Care Agency
Accounts
£
34,302
34,302
125,223

( 17,293 )

2017
Consolidated
Accounts
£
34,302
34,302
125,223
( 14,034 )

273,821

256,528

125,223

111,190

( 73,161 )

( 55,868 )

( 90,921 )

( 76,887 )

164,083
90,922

164,083
108,215

( 90,921 )

( 76,887 )

2018
£
108,215
( 17,293 )

2017
£
( 76,887 )
( 14,034 )

90,922

( 90,921 )

2017
£
57,908
( 57,907 )

2017
£
88,966
( 179,888 )

1

1,029,774

Investment Income						

UK bank interest receivable
Income from UK listed investments

Rowans Care Agency Limited delivers Social Care (08401725). The registered address of Rowans Care Agency
Limited is The Rowans Hospice, Purbrook Heath Road, Waterlooville, Hants, PO7 5RU.
The Rowans Care Agency was launched in 2016/17. A summary of its trading results is shown below.
2018
Consolidated
Accounts
£
200,660
200,660

2017
£
107,956
372,744
549,074
-

							

Rowans Care Agency Limited						

2018
Care Agency
Accounts
£
200,660
200,660

2018
£
95,186
433,895
576,144
5,817

Support groups
Hospice initiatives
Rowans Hospice raffles and lottery
Other activities

-

At 31 March 2017 there were 23 shops (2015: 22)

Fundraising

					

Unrestricted

Restricted

Funds

Funds

2018

2017

£
2,601
240,376

£
9
-

£
2,610
240,376

£
7,999
170,010

242,977

9

242,986

178,009

2018

2017

£
231,738
80,819
13,667
102,541
102,370
37,507
40,437
155,128

£
215,619
79,235
13,178
94,936
88,434
34,800
59,994
92,708

764,207

678,904

						

7.

Fundraising Expenditure

					

Fundraising staff
Hospice events
Support group expenditure
Lottery and raffle operating costs
Lottery development (canvassing)
Investment management costs
Other fundraising costs
Support Costs (note 8)

								
Support costs have been allocated to fundraising to reflect the usage of these resources, as explained in the
accounting policies in note 1.						
			 				

( 90,921 )
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9.

Net Income

Apportioned based on staff work plans									

Apportioned based on square footage occupied by team									

Apportioned based on number of team members									

Apportioned based on direct costs									

2

3

4

Consolidated net income is stated after charging:
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings
- photocopier
Depreciation – owned assets
Auditors’ remuneration
- audit - charity
- audit - trading company
- tax advice
- audit - care agency
- prior year under accrual

1

6,502,239
764,207
335,876
201,593
787,100
3,507,718

46,194
Governance

Total

4,834
10,743

4,869
98,470
Property and F&F
depreciation

721,837

3,223
-

1,074

14,067
59,842

11,362

183,908

71,439
5,371

3

2
202,677
5,410

8,657

4
281,453
46,721
17,035
8,586
Finance

124,999

46,076

27,451

8,271
27,568
118,544
IT

208,678
People services

Support Costs

12,406

-

10,585

183,330
13,784

3

322,723
24,265
14,559
21,838
48,530

4,853

278,721
181,645
595,466
2,910,833

649,314

2,757

5,440,617
665,409
159,229

132,066
21,923
7,993
Communications

58,653

21,620

12,881

4,029

4,967

226,609
Catering

226,609

-

-

-

-

3

4

2
439,284
30,489
129,701
Premises and equipment

213,424

10,554

24,626

11,727

18,763

4
94,241
5,704
Clinical support costs
and consumables

41,854

15,428

9,192

2,875

3,544

15,644

1
52,104
Occupational therapist

37,217

-

14,887

12,438
Chaplaincy

22,388

995

12,438

498

-

49,752
-

1

171,286
37,683
5,481
128,122
Social work team

995

95,724
52,990
42,734
Physiotherapists

-

510,165
Consultants and doctors

510,165

-

44

-

3,669,386
609,079
137,996
222,097
111,934
357,896
Direct Costs

1,629,667

600,717

-

Total Costs
Fundraising
Therapeutic
Day Care
Services
In-Patient
Care

Hospice at
Home

Community Bereavement
Care
Support

Education
and Training

1

Analysis of Expenditure on Charitable Activities and Fundraising				
1

8.

								

2018

2017

£
397,171
11,573
296,834
10,300
1,126
2,100
1,200
-

£
387,049
11,529
281,029
10,000
2,000
1,600
1,000
2,505

2018

2017

£
5,352,328
419,583
313,791
5,834

£
4,661,393
392,065
269,749
2,141

6,091,536

5,325,348

10. Staff Costs					
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Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Termination payment

					
The average head count was 308 (2017: 263). The average number of employees, calculated on a whole-time
equivalent basis, analysed by function was:						

Charitable activities
Cost of generating funds
Trading company
Care agency

2018

2017

Number
111
8
45
6

Number
99
7
47
2

170

155

						
Number of employees whose remuneration fell within the following ranges:				
£60,000 - £70,000
£80,000 - £90,000

2
1

2
1

Pension contributions in respect of employees earning £60,000 or more were £26,565 (2017: £25,383).
Total employee benefits for Key management personnel £422,385 (2017: £444,862).				
Volunteers - No amounts are included in the financial statements for services donated by volunteers – with
volunters contributing over 11,600 hours during the year, the amount involved is significant but difficult to
quantify.
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11. Trustees						

13. Investments

No member of the Board of Trustees received any emoluments during the year (2017: £Nil). Expenses amounting
to £188 (2017: £631) were paid to two Trustees (2017: two) covering travel and costs relating to training.

			

Trustees donated £3,315 unrestricted income (2017: £1,519).			

12. Tangible Fixed Assets 						
Group Assets

Land and Fixtures and
Buildings
Fittings

Computer
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Total

£

£

Fair Value at 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments

£

£

Cost
At 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals

5,864,143
176,966
( 123,932 )

574,879
85,062
( 92,541 )

214,257
50,452
( 29,391 )

89,335
-

6,742,614
312,480
(245,864)

Fair value of listed investments and cash held at 31 March 2018

Balance at 31 March 2018

5,917,177

567,400

235,318

89,335

6,809,230

Unlisted investment in subsidiaries

1,485,044
151,330
( 123,932 )
32,502

493,235
54,770
( 92,541 )
-

166,004
47,175
( 28,328 )
-

60,742
11,057
-

2,205,025
264,332
( 244,801 )
32,502

Balance at 31 March 2018

1,544,944

455,464

184,851

71,799

2,257,058

Net book value at 31 March 2018

4,372,233

111,936

50,467

17,536

4,552,172

Net book value at 31 March 2017

4,379,099

81,644

48,253

28,593

4,537,589

Charity Assets

Land and Fixtures and
Buildings
Fittings
£

Cost
At 1 April 2017
Additions

Total

£

£

5,740,212

341,675

138,684

6,220,571

176,966

72,983

40,188

290,137

( 92,541 )

( 26,979 )

( 119,520 )

322,117

151,893

Disposals
Balance at 31 March 2018

£

Computer
Equipment

5,917,178

6,391,188

Market value at 31 March 2018

1,405,107
139,837
-

300,986
28,462
( 92,541 )

104,793
37,392
( 26,979 )

1,810,886
205,691
( 119,520 )

Balance at 31 March 2018

1,544,944

236,907

115,206

1,897,057

Net book value at 31 March 2018

4,372,234

85,210

36,687

4,494,131

Net book value at 31 March 2017

4,335,105

40,689

33,891

4,409,685

£
5,345,837
1,084,693
-

£
4,731,712
89,502
524,623

6,356,871

5,345,837

485,731

1,357,284

6,842,602

6,703,121

3

3

Total Investments

6,842,605

6,703,124

Represented by
UK listed investments
Unlisted investment in subsidiary

6,356,871
3

5,345,837
3

485,731

1,357,284

6,842,605

6,703,124

Cash held in investment portfolio

Cash held as part of portfolio

					

The charity balance sheet includes investments totalling £3 in two unlisted subsidiary undertakings, The Rowans
Hospice Trading Company Limited and The Rowans Care Agency Limited (Note 4).					

14. Debtors
		

Debtors falling due within one year
Accrued legacy income
Other debtors
Pre-payments
Amounts owed by group undertakings

Depreciation
At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals

2017

( 73,659 )

£

Depreciation
At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals
Disposal

2018

Debtors falling due after one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings

Group

Group

Charity

Charity

2018
£

2017
£

2018
£

2017
£

1,221,751
446,212
151,646

769,863
465,509
150,468

1,221,751
394,841
80,600

769,863
444,691
78,418

-

-

310,458

614,923

1,819,609

1,385,840

2,007,650

1,907,895

-

-

-

102,034

1,819,609

1,385,840

2,007,650

2,009,929

												

In the event that the Freehold Property ceased to be owned by the Rowans, there is a restrictive covenant
in favour of the donor of the land. Land and Buildings includes Freehold interests of £2,338K, long leasehold
interests of £1,967K and short leasehold interests of £23K.						
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15. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year			

Other creditors
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Monies held as agents
Other tax and social security

18. Restricted Funds

						

Group

Group

Charity

Charity

2018
£
198,638
252,057
43,189
203,800

2017
£
163,011
150,004
42,594
72,210

2018
£
132,704
225,589
43,189
94,066

2017
£
138,561
129,790
42,594
86,732

697,684

427,819

495,548

397,676

						
Deferred income consists of lottery payments made in advance £46,798 (2017: £43,407) and payments for
			
hospice events that will occur in the new year £16,391 (2017: £25,126).

16. Provision for Liabilities						
Deferred tax liabilities is made up as follows:
2018
£
23,650

Accelerated capital allowances

							

2017
£
23,650

17. Operating lease commitments						
The following operating leases are subject to future commitments						
Group
Expiring:
Within one year
Between two and five years
In more than five years

2018
£

2017
£

346,623
661,151
200,549

381,925
889,243
281,291

1,208,323

1,552,459

							
At 31 March 2018 the charity was committed to operating lease payments of £331,373 (2017: £71,009). 		
				
£408,743K was paid for operating leases during the financial year by Rowans Hospice group (2017: £399K) and
£84K was paid by the charity (2017: £78K).					
Charity
Expiring:
Within one year
Between two and five years
In more than five years

2018
£

2017
£

331,373
660,859
200,549

93,032
307,804
88,833

1,192,781

489,669

Balance
01 April
2017

Income Expenditure

Transfers

Balance
31 March
2018

£

£

£

£

£

Violet Squire Love of Roses
Bursary Fund

14,000

9

-

-

14,009

Hospice Renovation

45,000

21,000

-

-

66,000

-

30,000

( 30,000 )

-

-

-

25,880

( 25,880 )

36,900

-

( 18,621 )

-

18,279

-

43,438

( 43,438 )

-

-

-

10,000

( 10,000 )

-

-

-

10,000

( 10,000 )

-

-

-

17,476

( 7,900 )

-

9,576

-

60,500

( 32,138 )

-

28,362

25,938

22,858

( 20,346 )

-

28,450

121,838

241,161

( 198,323 )

-

164,676

Group and Charity

Meerkat program - Children in Need
Funding
Education Facilitator Grant - Health
Education England
Rehabilitative Palliative Care - St
James Place Foundation/Hospice UK
Social Care Reablement Grant Portsmouth City Council
Albert Hunt Grant Hospice to Home
Grant
Childwick Trust Grant Hospice to
Home Grant
Aged Veterans Fund Funding
Harvesting Technology NHSE Future
Planning Project Funding
Other restricted funds

-

					
The Violet Squires Love of Roses Bursary Fund was set up on 26 June 1996 with a donation of £14,000 from Mr
D J Squire to fund nurse training by the payment of bursaries.					
The hospice is fundraising for the costs of renovating the hospice, the restricted fund represents the total raised
to date to fund this project.						
The Meerkat service receives funding from Children in Need to part-fund the programme.
Education Facilitator Grant funds the Six Steps program, where training is provided to care homes in providing
care for people approaching the end of life.
Rehabilitative Palliative Care Grant funds the development of a new programme of exercises and activity to be
delivered within the Living Well Centre that rehabilitates and improves the quality of life of people with a lifelimiting illness.
Social Care Reablement Grant - Funds the cost of a reablement social worker in Portsmouth.
Hospice to Home grants support the choice of patients who would be capable of returning home by providing
Hospice at Home nurses to support them.
The Aged Vetrans Fund uses Libor funding to support service vetrans as they near the end of life.
Harvesting Technology Funding has been provided to support the ongoing development and widening footprint
of the Future Planning Template.		
Other restricted funds represent donations and fundraising given for specific projects.		
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19. Summary of funds 2018		

Summary of funds 2017						
Balance
01 April
2017

Income

£

£

Expenditure

Transfers,
gains and
losses

Balance
31 March
2018

£

£

£

Group
Restricted funds

121,838

241,161

General funds
Revaluation reserve

3,980,387
617,554

8,905,823
-

Designated funds:
Fixed asset fund
Legacy risk management fund
Service investment fund
Hospice renovation fund

4,537,589
1,500,000
2,500,000
500,000

-

-

14,583
1,000,000

4,552,172
1,500,000
2,500,000
1,500,000

9,037,589

-

-

1,014,583

10,052,172

13,757,368

9,146,984

Total funds (Group)

( 198,323 )

-

( 8,623,175 ) ( 1,014,583 )
( 73,656 )

( 8,821,498 )

164,676
3,248,452
543,898

( 73,656 ) 14,009,198

				
Charity
Restricted funds
General funds
Revaluation reserve
Designated funds:
Fixed asset fund
Legacy risk management fund
Service investment fund
Hospice renovation fund

Group

Balance
01 April
2016
£

Income

Expenditure

£

£

Transfers
gains and
losses
£

Balance
31 March
2017
£

Restricted funds

1,240,151

363,447

( 92,421 ) ( 1,389,339 )

121,838

General funds
Revaluation reserve

4,303,754
92,931

9,356,140

( 7,817,831 ) ( 1,861,676 )
524,623

3,980,387
617,554

2,961,956
1,000,000
1,450,000
374,618
-

-

-

1,575,633
500,000
1,050,000
( 374,618 )
500,000

4,537,589
1,500,000
2,500,000
500,000

5,786,574

-

-

3,251,015

9,037,589

11,423,410

9,719,587

524,623

3,757,368

Restricted funds

1,240,151

363,447

( 92,421 ) ( 1,389,339 )

121,838

General funds
Revaluation reserve

4,435,907
92,931

7,912,304
-

( 6,283,074 ) ( 1,912,726 )
524,623

4,152,393
617,554

2,783,002
1,000,000
1,450,000
374,618
-

-

-

1,626,683
500,000
1,050,000
( 374,618 )
500,000

4,409,685
1,500,000
2,500,000
500,000

5,607,620

-

-

3,302,065

8,909,685

11,376,609

8,275,751

524,623

13,801,470

Designated funds:
Fixed asset fund
Legacy risk management fund
Service investment fund
Living Well Centre fund
Hospice renovation fund

Total funds (Group)

( 7,910,252 )

Charity
121,838

241,161

4,152,393
617,554

7,314,023
-

4,409,685
1,500,000
2,500,000
500,000

-

-

84,446
1,000,000

4,494,131
1,500,000
2,500,000
1,500,000

8,909,685

-

-

1,084,446

9,994,131

13,801,470
Total funds (Charity)
		 					

7,555,184

( 198,323 )

-

( 7,122,328 ) ( 1,084,446 )
( 73,656 )

( 7,320,651 )

164,676
3,259,642
543,898

Designated funds:
Fixed asset fund
Legacy risk management fund
Service investment fund
Living Well Centre fund
Hospice renovation fund

( 73,656 ) 13,962,347

The Fixed Asset Fund has been set up to assist in identifying those funds that are not free funds and it represents
the net book value of unrestricted tangible fixed assets. Transfers into the fixed asset fund are the net of
investment in fixed assets and the depreciation charge for the year.				
Legacy income risk is amongst the most significant risks faced by the charity. To manage the risk associated
with long term planning for legacy income, the legacy income risk element has been removed from the general
reserves consideration and will be managed through a dedicated designated fund. The legacy income risk
designated fund has allowed the hospice to more confidently budget legacy income and thus comit to increased
charitable expenditure.						

Total funds (Company)

( 6,375,495 )

		 					
							

The legacy risk is reviewed periodically and during the budget setting process and if Trustees determine that the
risk associated with legacies has increased, then more will be transferred to the legacy risk fund.		
The Trustees have approved a five-year plan to invest in the hospice. This investment is forecast to spend £2.5
million over the five years, the Service Investment Fund set aside to fund these investment activities.		
£1.5 million has been set aside to fund the renovation of the hospice.					
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20. Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds 2018						

Group

21. Reconciliation of Net Movement in Funds to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Restricted
Funds

Designated
Funds

General
Funds

Total

£

£

£

£

4,552,172
2,902,568
2,621,082
( 23,650 )

3,940,034
( 147,684 )

4,552,172
6,842,602
2,638,074
( 23,650 )

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Net current assets
Provision for liabilities

164,676
-

Total net assets

164,676

10,052,172

3,792,350

14,009,198

Charity
164,676

4,494,131
2,902,571
2,597,429

3,940,034
( 136,494 )

4,494,131
6,842,605
2,625,611

Total net assets

164,676

9,994,131

3,803,540

13,962,347

							

Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds 2017							

							

Restricted
Funds

Designated
Funds

General
Funds

Total

£

£

£

£

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Net current assets
Provision for liabilities

14,000
107,838
-

4,537,589
4,500,000
-

2,189,124
2,432,467
( 23,650 )

4,537,589
6,703,124
2,540,305
-23,650

Total net assets

121,838

9,037,589

4,597,941

13,757,368

251,830
297,897
73,656
( 242,986 )
( 1,367 )
( 433,769 )
269,865
215,126

Group
2017
£
2,333,958
302,679
( 524,623 )
( 178,009 )
4,463
( 625,400 )
( 158,348 )
1,154,720

							

22. Pensions						

Under the NHS Pension Scheme Regulations Superannuation (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1967: Section
7 (2) The Portsmouth Area Hospice (Superannuation) Direction 2002 dated 10 July 2002, certain employees
are eligible for Section 7 (2) direction cover if they take up employment with the Rowans Hospice whilst
continuing in, or within 12 months after leaving employment in which he/she has been subject to the National
Health Service Pension Scheme Regulations 1995. These employees are not covered by the National Health
Service (Compensation for Premature Retirement) Regulations or the National Health Service (Injury Benefits)
Regulations.						
The NHS Pension Scheme is a statutory scheme, its provisions are made through regulations made under
the Superannuation Act 1972. The NHS Pension Scheme is a defined benefits pensions scheme, benefits on
retirement are calculated from a formula based on the length of service and salary earned in the NHS.
The NHS Scheme has no invested fund, but is treated as having a Notional Fund. The Government Actuary
reviews the Scheme’s liabilities every five years and makes recommendations on contribution levels. NHS
employers pay contributions to cover any extra costs needed to maintain the Scheme’s viability and to fund the
guarantee; during the year ended 31 March 2015 these were set at 14%. The combined employer and member
contributions cover the costs of basic benefits. A contribution of £98,408 was paid in respect of the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: £98,408) by the National Health Service to fund the increase in contribution from 7% to
14% which commenced 2004.						
The charity offers to match employee contributions up to a maximum of 7% to any other eligible member of staff
of the group choosing to belong to the group pension schemes with Royal London, NEST and Aegon.		

Charity

Employer contributions for the group for the year ended 31 March 2018 were £313,790 (2017: £269,749)

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Net current assets

14,000
107,838

4,409,685
4,500,000
-

2,189,127
2,580,820

4,409,685
6,703,127
2,688,658

Total net assets

121,838

8,909,685

4,769,947

13,801,470

							

23. Legal Status						

The charity is incorporated as a company limited by guarantee having no share capital and, in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association, every member is liable to contribute a sum of £1 in the event of the company being
wound up.												

24. Related Party Disclosures						

Other than those transactions already disclosed between the charity and its wholly owned subsidiary, there were
no other related party transactions which require disclosure. Details of payments to the management team and all
transactions with the trustees are shown in notes 10 and 11.						
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Net movement in funds
Adjustment for:
Depreciation charges
Losses/(gains) on investments
Dividends and interest from investments
(Increase)/decrease in stocks
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Net cash provided by operating activities

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Net current assets

Group

Group
2018
£
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25. Financial Instruments 					 			

26. Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities Including Income and Expenditure Account
for the Year Ended 31 March 2017						

Group

Group

Charity

Charity

2018

2017

2018

2017

Unrestricted
Funds

Designated
Funds

Restricted
Funds

Total Funds
2017

Financial assets measured at fair value (a)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (b)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (c)

6,356,871
3,812,564
( 493,883 )

5,345,840
4,317,852
( 355,609 )

6,356,871
3,418,846
( 401,482 )

5,345,840
4,443,618
( 310,944 )

£

£

£

£

Net financial assets measured at amortised cost

9,675,552

9,308,083

9,374,235

9,478,514

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value cost includes investments held at fair value.				
(b) Financial assets measured at amortised cost include: short term deposits and cash in hand, trade debtors,
other debtors, accrued income, legacies and amounts owed by group undertakings.			
(c) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include: trade creditors, other creditors, money held as agents
and deferred income.						

Income From:
Donations and legacies
Charitable activities
Fundraising
Investment income
Rowans Hospice Trading Company
Rowans Care Agency

5,342,673
916,500
1,029,774
178,004
1,854,887
34,302

-

285,269
78,173
5
-

5,627,942
994,673
1,029,774
178,009
1,854,887
34,302

9,356,140.0

-

363,447.0

9,719,587

Expenditure on
Raising Funds
Fundraising
The Rowans Hospice Trading Company
Rowans Care Agency

678,904
1,922,902
111,190

-

-

678,904
1,922,902
111,190

Charitable Activities
In-patient care
Hospice at Home
Therapeutic day care services
Community care
Bereavement support
Education and training

3,241,649
703,778
575,447
168,437
286,039
129,485

-

28,413
6,047
2,072
29,174
26,715

3,270,062
709,825
577,519
168,437
315,213
156,200

Total Expenditure

7,817,831

-

92,421

7,910,252

524,623

-

-

524,623

2,062,932

-

271,026

2,333,958

Total Income

Net (losses)/gains on investments
Net Income
Transfer between funds

3,251,015

( 1,389,339 )

201,256

3,251,015

-1,118,313

2,333,958

Total funds brought forward

4,396,685

5,786,574

1,240,151

11,423,410

Total funds carried forward

4,597,941

9,037,589

121,838

13,757,368

Net movement in funds

( 1,861,676 )

-

Reconciliation of funds
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